




Page 1 of 5 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FOLLOWED BY PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY MEETING 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2015 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 

The City Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma met in regular session on the above date 
and time in the Council Chamber upstairs at City Hall, 12 North Rowe Street in Pryor Creek, 
Oklahoma.  This meeting was followed immediately by a meeting of the Pryor Public Works 
Authority.  Notice of these meetings was posted on the East bulletin board located outside to the 
South of the entrance doors. Notice was also emailed to The Paper and The Times newspapers 
and emailed to the Council members. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PRAYER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ ROLL CALL. 
Mayor Jimmy Tramel called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. The Prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance were conducted by Mayor Tramel. Roll call was conducted by City Clerk Eva Smith. 
Council members present included:  Roger Willcutt, Cheryl White, Yolanda Thompson, Houston 
Brittain, Greg Rosamond, Randy Chitwood, Ryan Rains and Drew Stott. Council members 
absent: none. 
 

Department Heads and other City Officials present:  City Attorney K. Ellis Ritchie, Police Chief 
Steve Lemmings, Fire Chief Tim Thompson, Assistant Fire Chief B.K. Young, Park 
Superintendent Frank Powell, Street Superintendent Jack Downing. 
 

Others:  Library Board Chairman Jeanette Anderson, Library employee Marie Reist, Police 
Captain James Willyard, Infrastructure Solutions Engineer Steve Powell, Rainbow Fireworks 
Representative Dale Ragains, Warren Cat Representative Charlie Meyer. 
 

2. PETITIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
(LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES) 

Jeanette Anderson thanked everyone on the Library Board and the Council for the repair of the 
sink at the Library. 
 

a. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL TO ISSUE A FIREWORKS 
PERMIT TO RAINBOW FIREWORKS, INC. FOR OCTOBER 10TH, 2015 WITH 
A RAIN DATE OF OCTOBER 17TH, 2015 ON THE VACANT LAND SOUTH OF 
HIGHWAY 20 AND EAST GRAHAM AVENUE OWNED BY THE FIRST 
CHURCH OF GOD. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Thompson to approve to issue a fireworks permit to 
Rainbow Fireworks, Inc. for October 10th, 2015 with a rain date of October 17th, 2015 on the 
vacant land South of Highway 20 and East Graham Avenue owned by the First Church of God. 
(Fireworks will be set-off at dark per Dale Ragains.) Voting yes:  Willcutt, White, Thompson, 
Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott. Voting no:  none. 
 

3. MAYOR'S REPORT: 
Mayor read a Proclamation for the Daughters of the Revolution proclaiming September 17 – 23 
Constitution Week. 
 

Mayor announced the Pryor High School has requested the closing of Adair Street from Graham 
Avenue to 1st Street for a Homecoming Block Party on September 24th, 2015 from 6:30 to 8:30 
p.m.  

4. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
a. SECOND AND FINAL READING, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION OF 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 3-10A-1 
REGARDING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES. 

Motion was made by Brittain second by Chitwood to approve and waive the reading of 
Ordinance 2015 - 14 Amending Pryor Creek City Code Section 3-10A-1 Regarding Alcoholic 
Beverages. Voting yes:  White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt. 
Voting no:  none. 

b. SECOND AND FINAL READING, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION OF 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE SECTION 3-10A-3 
REGARDING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES. 

Motion was made by Chitwood second by Brittain to approve and waive the reading of 
Ordinance 2015 - 15 Amending Pryor Creek City Code Section 3-10A-3 Regarding Alcoholic 
Beverages. Voting yes:  Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White. 
Voting no:  none. 



Page 2 of 5 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 
5. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON CONSENT AGENDA. 

(ITEMS DEEMED NON-CONTROVERSIAL AND ROUTINE IN NATURE TO BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION WITHOUT 
DISCUSSION. ANY COUNCIL MEMBER WISHING TO DISCUSS AN ITEM MAY REQUEST IT BE REMOVED AND PLACED 

ON THE REGULAR AGENDA.) 
a. Approve minutes of September 1ST, 2015 Council meeting. 
b. Approve payroll purchase orders through September 25th, 2015.     
c. Approve claims for purchase orders through September 15th, 2015. 

APPROVE PURCHASE ORDERS THROUGH SEPTEMBER 15th, 2015. 
FUNDS    PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER        TOTALS 

 GENERAL 1520150652 - 1520150450 $ 132,815.36 
 STREET & DRAINAGE 910641B - 1520150452 10,766.52 
 GOLF 1520150629 - 1520150556 9,071.10 
 CAPITAL OUTLAY 910607B - 1520150362 22,267.69 
 REAL PROPERTY 910671B – 910671B 3,600.00 
 RECREATION CENTER 1520150564 - 1520150622 17,096.73 
 P.P.W.A 1520150602 142.56 
 E-911 CASH 1520150598 331.00 
 DONATIONS 1520150599 $           197.15 
   TOTAL                         $    196,288.11 
 

NEW BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS 
   

 910719B VIOLET F. KIRKENDALL CPA $      14,500.00 
  TOTAL $      14,500.00 

d. Acknowledge receipt of deficient purchase orders.  
There were no deficient purchase orders presented. 

e. Approve expenditure of $9,823.64 to AGES Computers for the purchase of Kaspersky 
Endpoint Security for Business Plus 3 years 24 x 7 Support software.  No other quotes 
received. 

f. Approve expenditures of 2015 – 2016 Hotel / Motel grant funds summary letters of intent 
as follows: 

1. Pryor Area Chamber of Commerce - $27,156.00 
2. Pryor Public Schools - $11,078.00 
3. Pryor Band Day - $2,500.00 
4. Pryor Main Street - $6,789.00 

g. Approve expenditures of 2015 – 2016 Hotel / Motel grant fund applications as follows: 
1. American Cowboy Trader Days - $2,500.00 
2. Pryor Christmas Parade of Lights - $2,500.00 
3. Comforts of Home Quilt Show - $2,500.00 
4. Chili Christmas Car and Bike Show - $2,500.00 
5. Dad’s Drag Main Block Party - $2,000.00 
6. Missoula Children’s Theater - $1,500.00 
7. NEOK Area Art Show - $1,500.00 
8. OK Association Jr. Tournament - $2,470.00 

h. Approve expenditure of $2,500.00 for Phase I – Investigative Study to Infrastructure 
Solutions Group, LLC for Pocket Park Wall Stabilization Study and Bidding Services. 
(Project Number PRY-15-02) 

i. Approve authorizing the Mayor to sign the Cooperative Service Field Agreement 
between the City of Pryor Creek and United States Department of Agriculture Animal 
and Plant Health Inspection Service Wildlife Services (WS). 

j. Approve change order #1 to Advanced Workzone Services, LLC in the amount of 
$389.40 as required by ODOT, Gore markings to be double striped around the edges at 
each area indicated as follows:  Northwest corner of Adair Street, Northwest corner of 
Vann Street, Northwest corner of Rowe, border line change from 4 inch to 8 inch in 
width.  Approved by Steve Powell, Engineer of Project Number PRY14-02.  (Graham 
Avenue re-striping project.) 

k. Approve declaring surplus from the Pryor Police Department and approve seeking sealed 
bids for the following items that were seized and forfeited by the District Court: 

1. 1998 Ford F150 XL Vin 1FTZF1721WKA63902 
2. 1995 Chevrolet Monte Carlo Sport Vin 2G1WW12M5S9332340 
3. 1995 Chevrolet Cheyenne Pickup Vin 1GCEC14Z5SZ283795 
4. 1980 Ford Mustang Vin 0F04B188519 (No Title, Salvage only) 
5. 1998 Mercury Sable GS Vin MEFM50U3WA616601 
6. 1992 Honda Accord  Vin 1HGCB715XNA019586 
7. 1993 Chevrolet Silverado 4x4 1GCEK14K6PZ182732 

l. Approve declaring surplus the following vehicles and approve seeking sealed bids for the 
following vehicles owned by the City: 

1. 2006 Dodge Charger Vin 2B3KA43HX6H504978 (UNIT 31) 



Page 3 of 5 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

2. 2008 Dodge Charger Vin 2B3KA43HX8H271333 (UNIT 37) 
3. 2005 Ford Crown Victoria Vin 2FAFP71W15X123726 (UNIT 24) 
4. 2000 Ford Crown Victoria Vin 2FAFP71W6YX127081 
5. 1996 Chevrolet Suburban Vin 1GNFK16R4TJ310240 

m. Approve hiring Brett Adams as a Volunteer Firefighter to fill vacant position effective 
September 15th, 2015 pending approval of physical and background check.  

n. Approve hiring Cari Rerat to fill vacant Library Director at the Pryor Creek Public 
Library effective October 5th, 2015 at Range F, Step 2 (annual wage $42,261.00) with the 
understanding she will remain at Step 2 until qualifying for Step 3. 

o. Approve promotion of Marie Reist from Librarian 2, Range C, Step 4 (annual wage 
$34,202.00) to Librarian 3 at Range D, Step 4 (annual wage $36,221.00) effective 
September 26th, 2015. 

p. Approve promotion of Lucas Hoover from “B” Operator, Range C, Step 2 (annual wage 
$29,310.00) to “A” Operator, Range D, Step 2 (annual wage $30,857.00) for the 
Cemetery Department effective September 26th, 2015. 

q. Approve promotion of Wesley Griffin from “B” Operator, Range C, Step 2 (annual wage 
$29,310.00) to “A” Operator, Range D, Step 2 (annual wage $30,857.00) for the Street 
Department effective September 26th, 2015. 

r. Approve expenditure of $5,869.00 (State Contract price) to Warren Cat for the purchase 
of a 420F Hydraulic Thumb for Street Department backhoe from Street Capital Outlay 
(Account #14-145-5411).  

s. Approve seeking quotes to resurface the tennis courts using Deco Turf Systems at 
Whitaker Park. 

t. Approve expenditure in the amount of $4,654.67 to Swimtime (Division of United 
Industries, Inc.) for an Aurora 341 A-BF 6 x 6 x 9, 20 HP, 1750 rpm 230 / 460 VAC 3 
phase pump, capable of providing 900 GPM @ 70’ TDH.  No other quotes received.  

u. Approve expenditure in the amount of $4,606.33 to Swimtime (Division of United 
Industries, Inc.) for 2 – 3 step ladders and 2 – 4 step ladders including hardware for the 
Pryor Creek Public Pool including freight.  (Other quotes received:  W. M. Smith & 
Associates, Inc. - $4,282.86 and Pool Supply World - $4,491.74) 

v. Approve hiring Justin Allen to fill vacant Patrolman position at the Police Department at 
Range J, Step 1 (annual wage - $32,295.00) effective October 5th, 2015 pending approval 
from the Oklahoma Police and Pension and Retirement Board. 

 

Motion was made by Rosamond, second by White to approve items a-v less items a, e, h, i, n, r, 
t, u. Voting yes:  Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson. 
Voting no:  none. 
 

a. APPROVE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 1ST, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING. 
Motion was made by Rosamond, second by Stott to approve minutes of September 1st, 2015 
Council meeting. Voting yes:  Rosamond, Chitwood, Stott, Thompson, Brittain. Voting no:  
none. Abstaining (counting as a no vote): Rains, Willcutt, White. 
 

e. APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF $9,823.64 TO AGES COMPUTERS FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF KASPERSKY ENDPOINT SECURITY FOR BUSINESS PLUS 3 
YEARS 24 X 7 SUPPORT SOFTWARE.  NO OTHER QUOTES RECEIVED. 

Motion was made by Rosamond, second by Brittain to approve expenditure of $9,823.64 to 
AGES Computers for the purchase of Kaspersky Endpoint Security for Business Plus 3 years 24 
x 7 Support software. Voting yes:  Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, 
Rosamond. Voting no: Brittain.  
 

Mayor stated another quote was received earlier that day from VisionQuest (Vinita, OK) 
$6,900.00 plus shop labor. No full estimate received for labor. 
 

h. APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF $2,500.00 FOR PHASE I – INVESTIGATIVE 
STUDY TO INFRASTRUCTURE SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC FOR POCKET 
PARK WALL STABILIZATION STUDY AND BIDDING SERVICES. (PROJECT 
NUMBER PRY-15-02) 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Rosamond to approve expenditure of $2,500.00 for 
Phase I – Investigative Study to Infrastructure Solutions Group, LLC for Pocket Park Wall 
Stabilization Study and Bidding Services. (Project Number PRY-15-02) Voting yes:  Rains, 
Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood. Voting no: none.  
 

Steve Powell explained this expenditure further. He stated the question remains to be seen as to 
whether the existing walls are sound and what removal of the front wall will do to the structure. 



Page 4 of 5 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

A structural engineer will provide a report and an estimate to determine if the walls are 
structurally sound. If there are any bid documents for additional support the structural engineer 
will prepare and put out for bid.  
 

i. APPROVE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE COOPERATIVE 
SERVICE FIELD AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK 
AND UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ANIMAL AND 
PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE WILDLIFE SERVICES (WS). 

Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Chitwood to approve authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
Cooperative Service Field Agreement between the City of Pryor Creek and United States 
Department of Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service Wildlife Services (WS). 
Voting yes:  Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains. Voting no:  
none. 
 

n. APPROVE HIRING CARI RERAT TO FILL VACANT LIBRARY DIRECTOR 
AT THE PRYOR CREEK PUBLIC LIBRARY EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 5TH, 2015 
AT RANGE F, STEP 2 (ANNUAL WAGE $42,261.00) WITH THE 
UNDERSTANDING SHE WILL REMAIN AT STEP 2 UNTIL QUALIFYING 
FOR STEP 3. 

Motion was made by Chitwood, second by Rosamond to approve hiring Cari Rerat to fill vacant 
Library Director at the Pryor Creek Public Library effective October 5th, 2015 at Range F, Step 2 
(annual wage $42,261.00) with the understanding she will remain at Step 2 until qualifying for 
Step 3. Voting yes:  Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain. 
Voting no:  none. 
 

r. APPROVE EXPENDITURE OF $5,869.00 (STATE CONTRACT PRICE) TO 
WARREN CAT FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 420F HYDRAULIC THUMB FOR 
STREET DEPARTMENT BACKHOE FROM STREET CAPITAL OUTLAY 
(ACCOUNT #14-145-5411).  

Motion was made by Rosamond, second by White to approve expenditure of $5,869.00 (State 
Contract price) to Warren Cat for the purchase of a 420F Hydraulic Thumb for Street 
Department backhoe from Street Capital Outlay (Account #14-145-5411). Voting yes:  White, 
Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt. Voting no: none. 
 

t. APPROVE EXPENDITURE IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,654.67 TO SWIMTIME 
(DIVISION OF UNITED INDUSTRIES, INC.) FOR AN AURORA 341 A-BF 6 X 6 
X 9, 20 HP, 1750 RPM 230 / 460 VAC 3 PHASE PUMP, CAPABLE OF 
PROVIDING 900 GPM @ 70’ TDH.  NO OTHER QUOTES RECEIVED. 

Motion was made by Brittain, second by Willcutt to approve expenditure in the amount of 
$4,654.67 to Swimtime (Division of United Industries, Inc.) for an Aurora 341 A-BF 6 x 6 x 9, 
20 HP, 1750 rpm 230 / 460 VAC 3 phase pump, capable of providing 900 GPM @ 70’ TDH. 
(Other quote received: Haynes - $4,758.00) Voting yes:  Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, 
Chitwood, Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White. Voting no:  none. 
 

u. APPROVE EXPENDITURE IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,606.33 TO SWIMTIME 
(DIVISION OF UNITED INDUSTRIES, INC.) FOR 2 – 3 STEP LADDERS AND 2 
– 4 STEP LADDERS INCLUDING HARDWARE FOR THE PRYOR CREEK 
PUBLIC POOL INCLUDING FREIGHT.  (OTHER QUOTES RECEIVED:  W. M. 
SMITH & ASSOCIATES, INC. - $4,282.86 AND POOL SUPPLY WORLD - 
$4,491.74) 

Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Thompson to approve expenditure in the amount of 
$4,606.33 to Swimtime (Division of United Industries, Inc.) for 2 – 3 step ladders and 2 – 4 step 
ladders including hardware for the Pryor Creek Public Pool including freight.  (Other quotes 
received:  W. M. Smith & Associates, Inc. - $4,282.86 and Pool Supply World - $4,491.74) 
Motion and second was amended to include “in the best interest of the City”. Voting yes:  
Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood, Rains, Willcutt, Thompson. Voting no:  Stott, White. 
 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
a. BUDGET / PERSONNEL (ROSAMOND) 
Rosamond reported for the Budget / Personnel Committee and stated that everything was 
handled earlier in this meeting. He also stated they would meet the second Tuesday of next 
month. 
b. ORDINANCE / INSURANCE (CHITWOOD) 
Chitwood reported for the Ordinance / Insurance Committee. He stated they need to schedule a 
meeting for Health Insurance. 
c. STREET / MAINTENANCE GARAGE (WILLCUTT)  



Page 5 of 5 

 
MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING SEPTEMBER 15TH, 2015  PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

Willcutt reported for the Street / Maintenance Garage Committee. He stated the Committee will 
meet in special session on Monday, September 28th at 5 p.m.  
 
 
 

7. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORESEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

 

There was no unforeseen business presented. 
 

8. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Willcutt, second by Stott to adjourn. Voting yes:  Rosamond, Chitwood, 
Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain. Voting no:  none.  
 

PRYOR PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Tramel called the Pryor Public Works Authority meeting to order at 6:50 p.m. 
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY ACT ON APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 
1ST, 2015 MEETING. 

Motion was made by Stott, second by Brittain to approve minutes of September 1st, 2015 
meeting. Voting yes: Chitwood, Stott, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond. Voting no:  none. 
Abstaining (counting as a no vote): Rains, Willcutt, White. 
 

3. UNFORESEEABLE BUSINESS. 
(ANY MATTER NOT REASONABLY FORSEEN PRIOR TO POSTING OF AGENDA.) 

There was no unforeseeable business presented. 
 

4. ADJOURN. 
Motion was made by Stott, second by Willcutt to adjourn from the Pryor Public Works Authority 
meeting. Voting yes: Rains, Stott, Willcutt, White, Thompson, Brittain, Rosamond, Chitwood. 
Voting no:  none. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES APPROVED BY MAYOR / P.P.W.A CHAIRMAN JIMMY TRAMEL 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

MINUTES WRITTEN BY CITY CLERK EVA SMITH  

_________________________________________________________________________________ 





 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015 - ____ 

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING OF EASEMENT DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:   

A strip of land situated in Lot 3 of the FAIRLAND ADDITION to the City of PRYOR 

CREEK, Mayes County, Oklahoma, and more particularly described as follows, to-wit:  

The South 10.0 Feet of the North 76.0 Feet of the West 175.0 Feet AND the West 10.0 Feet 

of the South 62.0 Feet of said Lot 3. 

WHEREAS, GRAND LAKE MENTAL HEALTH CENTERS is the owner of certain land 

located in the FAIRLAND ADDITION to the City of PRYOR CREEK affected by the easement 

which is the subject of this Ordinance and has made application to the Planning Commission of 

the City for the closing of said easement, and; 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission of the City has, following public hearing thereon, made 

a report finding that the easement sought to be vacated has never been utilized by the City, 

Public or any other entity, franchise holder or others legally entitled to use the said easement and 

the Planning Commission has made its recommendation to the City Council that the easement be 

closed. 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City in the furtherance of 

economic development in the area of the easement and in accordance with the recommendation 

of the City Planning Commission that said easement should be closed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR, AND THE COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, MAYES COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, TO-

WIT: 

SECTION 1. The City Council does, by the adoption of this Ordinance, declare closed that 

portion of an easement located in the FAIRLAND ADDITION to the City of PRYOR CREEK 

and being more particularly described as follows, to-wit:  A strip of land situated in Lot 3 of 

the FAIRLAND ADDITION to the City of PRYOR CREEK, Mayes County, Oklahoma, 

and more particularly described as follows, to-wit:  The South 10.0 Feet of the North 76.0 

Feet of the West 175.0 Feet AND the West 10.0 Feet of the South 62.0 Feet of said Lot 3. 

SECTION 2. REPEALER. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict here with are 

hereby repealed to the extent of any such conflict. 

 

SECTION 3 SEVERABILITY. If any section, sub-section, sentence, clause, phrase, or 

portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional 

by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect 

the validity of the remaining portion of this ordinance. 

 



 

 

Passed and Approved by the Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, in regular session on 

this         day of                  , 2015 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, 

OKLAHOMA 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jimmy Tramel, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Eva Smith, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

K. Ellis Ritchie, City Attorney 

























9/22/2015 

9ft Salt/Sand Spreader to fit inside ¾ ton dump truck bed. 

 

http://www.totaltruckandtrailer.com/truckequipment/detail.cfm?v_id=16 

 

 

http://www.totaltruckandtrailer.com/truckequipment/detail.cfm?v_id=16






























































This job is located in the Pryor Creek Recreation Center.  

 Essential job functions include: administering the Pryor Creek Recreation 
center's programs or activities to ensure compliance with departmental policy and 
supervising the center staff.  The worker has frequent contact with civic groups, 
school leaders and social organizations to develop and organize community 
participation in the center.  The individual in this position may have daily contact 
with all age groups, from pre-school to senior citizens, and is responsible for the 
implementation of Recreation Center programs which ranges from budget, 
seminars to various recreational activities. A close working relationship is 
established between the employee, the center's staff and participants, to develop 
and carry out programs specifically oriented to community needs and desires.    

Job Requirements 

• Skill in soliciting parental assistance in disciplinary matters. 
• Skill in instructing in proper use of facilities and equipment. 
• Skill in supervising.  
• Skill in determining solutions to problems in recreation center.  
• Skill in identifying safety hazards. 
• Skill in identifying abusive and/or improper use of equipment/facilities. 
• Skill in instructing in special activities, i.e., arts/crafts, and recreation 

center activities. 
• Skill in communicating verbally and in writing using tact and diplomacy. 
• Skill in planning schedules and work activities. 
• Possession of a valid Oklahoma State Driver License. 
• Certified   Pool Operator at time of hire or within first six (6) months of hire 

date 

 
DEPARTMENTAL PREFERENCES 
  

• Bachelor’s degree in Recreation or related field. 
• Experience developing and implementing after school programs. 
• Previous experience supervising staff. 
• Prior work experience in a community center environment. 
• Previous experience working with the public or providing customer 

service. 

Working Conditions and Physical Requirements 
WORKING CONDITIONS 

• Primarily inside in a climate controlled environment 
• Must be willing to work flexible working hours including weekends and 

holidays. 



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 

BETWEEN 

 

THE CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 

 

 

 

AND 

 

 

 

LOCAL 3567 of 

THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

OF FIRE FIGHTERS, AFL-CIO/CLC 

 

 

 

Effective 

 

JULY 1, 2015 through JUNE 30, 2016 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Table of Contents 
                                                                                                       Page 
                                                                                          
ARTICLE 1. Collective Bargaining Agreement..…………………... 3                
 
ARTICLE 2. Recognition….…………………….…………………. 3 
 
ARTICLE 3.  Duration of Agreement……………………………… 3 
 
ARTICLE 4.  Prevailing Rights…………………………………….   4 
 
ARTICLE 5.  Non-Discrimination  ……………………………… 4 
 
ARTICLE 6.  Prohibition of Strikes……………………………… 5 
 
ARTICLE 7.  Administrative Rights……………………………… 5 
 
ARTICLE 8.  Grievance Procedure……………………………….. 5 
 
ARTICLE 9. Personnel Reduction ..……………………………… 8 
 
ARTICLE 10. Insurance ………………………………………….. 9 
 
ARTICLE 11. Replacement of Damaged Items…………………... 11 
 
ARTICLE 12. Successors and Assigns…………………………… 11 
 
ARTICLE 13. Personnel Files Confidentiality …………………... 12 
 
ARTICLE 14. Leaves………………………………………………  12 
 
ARTICLE 155. Personnel Rules and Regulations ………..……..... 15 
 
ARTICLE 16. Hours and Time Exchange ………………………. 15 
 
ARTICLE 176. Bargaining Unit Rights and Security ……………. 16 
 
ARTICLE 187. Incentive Pay   ………………………………….… 178 
 
ARTICLE 198. Wages and Longevity Pay...……………………… 189 
 
ARTICLE 2019. Savings Clause   ………………………………….. 19 
 
ARTICLE 210. Miscellaneous  ……………………………………. 1920 
 
ARTICLE 221. Drug Policy……………………………………….. 20 
 
ARTICLE 232. Performance Appraisal ……………………………
 201 
 
ARTICLE 243. Education Incentive ……………………………….
 212 
 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 3 
 

SIGNATURE PAGES…………………………………………….   212-
223 
 
 

ARTICLE 1 

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

This agreement made and entered into this, ____ day of 

________________, 2015 by and between the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma, 

hereinafter referred as “City” and Local 3567 of the International Association of 

Firefighters, AFL-CIO/CLC, hereinafter referred to as “Local”. 

 

This collective bargaining agreement is made pursuant to Title 11 O.S.A. 

Section 51-105 et. seq. and is made to: 

 

(a)  Establish wages, hours, benefits, grievance procedures, and other 

terms and conditions of employment of represented members of the 

City of Pryor Creek Fire Department; 

 

(b)  Assist in the amicable adjustment of labor disputes. 
 

ARTICLE 2 

RECOGNITION 

The City recognizes the Local as the sole and exclusive Bargaining Agent 

for all permanent paid members of the Pryor Creek Fire Department with the 

exception of the Fire Chief and one (1) designated administrative assistant. 
 
 

ARTICLE 3 

DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

Section 1.   

This agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2015, and shall remain in full force 

and effect through June 30, 2016. 

 

Section 2.  

The term of this agreement shall not exceed one (1) year. Provided however, this 

agreement may be extended for one (1), one year period upon the written mutual 

consent of both parties no later than thirty (30) days before the expiration of the 

term of the agreement.  

 

Section 3.  

Whenever wages, rates of pay or other matters requiring the appropriation of 

monies by the City are included as matters of collective bargaining, written notice 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 4 
 

of request for collective bargaining shall be given by either party at least one 

hundred twenty (120) days before the last day on which monies can be 

appropriated by the City to cover the contract period which is the subject of the 

collective bargaining procedure.  

 

Section 4.  

It shall be the obligation of each party to meet at a reasonable time and confer in 

good faith with representatives of the other party within ten (10) days of written 

notice requesting a meeting for collective bargaining purposes. Provided, however, 

it is understood that the parties have negotiated fully on wages, benefits and other 

terms and conditions of employment for the term of this agreement, and neither 

party shall be required to renegotiate such terms during the agreement. 

 

Section 5.  

It is understood that all time limits found within this agreement may be extended 

with mutual concurrence. Which mutual concurrence shall be effective to extend 

any time limit only if, previous to the expiration thereof, the mutual concurrence is 

set forth in writing and acknowledged by signature of the President of the Union 

and the signature of Mayor or City Attorney.  

 

ARTICLE 4 

PREVAILING RIGHTS 

 Pursuant to OKLA. STAT. Titl. 11 § 51-111 the parties acknowledge and 

agree that the applicable rules, policies and procedures, regulations, fiscal 

procedures, working conditions, departmental practices and manner of conducting 

the operation and administration of the fire department and City of Pryor Creek 

currently in effect on the date this agreement is signed are incorporated into this 

agreement except as expressly modified or changed by the specific terms of the 

agreement. 
 

ARTICLE 5 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 

Section 1.  

Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as diminishing the obligation of 

both parties to comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations or orders which 

insure that applicants or employees are treated without regard to race, religion, sex, 

national origin, age, handicap, status of Union membership, or political affiliations, 

or other categories protected by law. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

interpreted as diminishing the obligations of the City or the Local to comply with 

the provisions of the Fair Labor Standard Act, any duly adopted and applicable 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 5 
 

Department of Labor regulation promulgated hereunder, and any other applicable 

laws, rules, regulations, standards and orders. 
 
Section 2.  

The use of the masculine or feminine gender herein shall be construed to mean 

both or either gender, as the case may be, unless the context requires otherwise. 
 

ARTICLE 6 

PROHIBITION OF STRIKES 

Section 1.  

The Local and its members agree not to engage in a strike, work stoppage, or other 

similar forms of interference with the operations of the Pryor Creek Fire 

Department as defined in Title 11 O.S.A. Section 51-102(3). 

 

Section 2.  

The Local and the City agree not to coerce or attempt to coerce the other party in 

the selection of its representatives for the purposes of collective bargaining. The 

Local and its members agree not to call for any boycott of the business or 

employment of any members of the City Council or of their employer during 

contract negotiations. 

 

Section 3.  

The City recognizes that it is the public policy of the State of Oklahoma to accord 

the permanent members of the Fire Department all of the rights of labor, other than 

the right to strike or to engage in any work stoppage or slowdown as defined in 

Title 11 O.S.A. Section 51-101-B 
 

ARTICLE 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE RIGHTS 

 All of the rights to manage and direct the fire department, which have not 

been specifically abridged by this Agreement, shall remain the exclusive right of 

the City. Such rights include, but are not limited to the right to hire, promote, 

reprimand, suspend, demote or discharge employees for just cause, subject to the 

grievance and arbitration procedures herein, the right to conduct and control 

operations of the department, the right to introduce new or improved methods of 

operation and equipment, the right to schedule and assign the use of such 

equipment or manpower. 
 

ARTICLE 8 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Section 1. The Local or any employee covered under this Agreement may file a 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 6 
 

grievance within fifteen (15) days of the date of an alleged violation of this 

Agreement occurs or becomes known to the Union or an employee, as hereinafter 

defined, and shall be afforded the full protection of this Agreement. 

 

Section 2. The Local President or his authorized representative may report an 

impending grievance to the Fire Chief or his designee in an effort to forestall its 

occurrence. 

 

Section 3. Any controversy between the City and the Local or employee 

concerning the interpretation, enforcement or application of any provision of this 

Agreement concerning any of the terms or conditions of employment contained in 

this Agreement shall be adjusted in the following manner: 

 

A. The grievant shall notify the Local Grievance Committee and the Fire 

Chief, or his designee, of the filing of a grievance. Within ten (10) 

calendar days the Local Grievance Committee shall determine, in 

their sole discretion and judgment, whether or not a grievance exists 

within the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

(1) If the Local Grievance Committee finds a grievance does not 

exist, no further proceedings shall be necessary; 

 

(2) If the Local Grievance Committee finds a grievance does exist, 

the procedure of Section 3.B shall apply; 

 

B. If the Local Grievance Committee finds that a grievance does exist, 

the Committee shall submit, in writing, this grievance to the Fire 

Chief, of his designee, for adjustment. Upon receipt of the grievance, 

the Fire Chief shall sign a document indicating receipt of the 

grievance and indicating the time of receipt. 

 

C. The Fire Chief, or the Assistant Fire Chief, shall submit his answer in 

writing to the employee(s) involved and to the Local Grievance 

Committee within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the grievance. 

A representative of the Local Grievance Committee shall sign a 

document indicating the time of receipt of the answer by the Fire 

Chief. The grievance shall be considered settled unless the Local 

Grievance Committee within seven (7) calendar days from receipt of 

the answer by the Fire Chief submits the grievance to the Mayor or to 

the Mayor’s designee if the Mayor is not available-the City Clerk or 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 7 
 

the Vice Mayor. At the time the Mayor, or the Mayor’s designee 

receives the grievance from the Local Grievance Committee, he/she 

shall sign a document indicating the time of receipt of the grievance. 

 

D. The Mayor shall submit his/her answer in writing to the Fire Chief, 

the employee(s) involved, and the Local Grievance Committee within 

ten (10) business days. A member of the Local Grievance Committee 

shall sign a document indicating the time of receipt of the Mayor’s 

response. If the Mayor and the Local Grievance Committee have not 

settled the grievance within that time, then either party may request 

arbitration. If either party requests arbitration, it shall be submitted for 

adjustment as follows: 

 

 (1) Prior to the initiation of arbitration, either party or the parties 

jointly may notify the Federal Mediation and Conciliation 

Service to administer grievance mediation in a good faith effort 

to resolve the grievance. If the grievance remains unsolved, it 

may be submitted to a grievance arbitrator for resolution by 

either party or jointly as the case may be. 

 

 (2) Either party may request a panel of five (5) arbitrators from the 

Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. 

 

 (3) Within seven (7) calendar days from the receipt of such panel, a 

Representative of the Local and City shall confer and 

alternately strike names until one arbitrator remains, which 

shall be selected as the impartial arbitrator. The City shall make 

the first strike on even numbered grievances and the Local on 

odd numbered grievances. 

 

 (4) Upon notification of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation 

Service of the selection of the arbitrator and the arbitrator is 

contacted, the date for arbitration shall be set, if possible, within 

thirty (30) calendar days from the date the arbitrator is notified 

of his selection. 

 

 (5) Within ten (10) days, if possible, after the conclusion of the 

hearing, the arbitrator shall issue a written opinion and decision 

with respect to the issues presented. A copy of the decision 

shall be mailed or delivered to the Local and the City. 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 8 
 

 

 (6) The arbitration hearing shall be informal. Any and all 

documentary evidence and other data deemed relevant by the 

arbitrator might be received in evidence. The arbitrator shall 

have the power to administer oaths and require by subpoena the 

attendance and testimony of witnesses, the production of books 

and documents and other evidence relative or pertinent to the 

issues presented to him for determination. 

 

  (7) With respect to the interpretation, enforcement or application of 

the provisions of this Agreement, the decisions and opinion of 

the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties to this 

Agreement to the extent such decision and opinion are 

consistent with Oklahoma and/or Federal law, as decided by a 

court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

  (8) The arbitrator’s authority shall be limited to the interpretation 

and application of the terms of this Agreement and/or any 

supplement thereto. The arbitrator shall have no jurisdiction to 

establish provisions of a new Agreement or variation of the 

present Agreement or to arbitrate away, in whole or in part, any 

provisions or amendments thereof. This shall not preclude 

individual wage grievances. 

 

  (9) The cost of the impartial arbitrator shall be shared between the 

Local and the City. If a transcript of the proceedings is 

requested, then the party so requesting shall pay for it. 

 

Section 4.  

All time limits set forth in this Article may be extended by mutual agreement, in 

writing, but if not so extended, shall be strictly observed. 
 

ARTICLE 9 

PERSONNEL REDUCTION 

Section 1.  

In the event personnel reduction(s) are necessary, the employee with the least 

seniority in the Fire Department shall be laid off first, subject to a thirty-day (30) 

notice to each employee of the Fire Department for the purpose of providing the 

opportunity for incumbent employees to exercise their pension options. 

 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 9 
 

Section 2. 

 Laid off employees will be placed on a recall list for twelve (12) months from the 

effective date of the layoff.  Before hiring other applicants, those employees who 

were laid off will be contacted first in order of the employee with the most 

seniority through the employee with the least seniority, to determine if they wish to 

return to the employment of the City of Pryor Creek Fire Department. Contact will 

be made by mailing a notice to the employee and the Union President at the 

address on file in the Personnel Office. It is the employee’s responsibility to keep 

Personnel informed of his current address and telephone number. Each employee 

contacted will be given a thirty-day (30) period to notify the Employer of his 

intentions. The thirty-day (30) time frame begins from the date of the mailing of 

the notice. If the employee fails to notify the Employer within this thirty-day (30) 

period, he will relinquish all recall rights. If the employee does notify the 

Employer of his intention to return to work, but fails to report to work on the 

agreed upon starting date, he will relinquish all recall rights. 

 

Section 3.  

Leave time will not accrue during the period of layoff.  However, previously 

accrued sick leave and seniority will be reinstated, if the laid off employee is 

recalled within twelve (12) months after the layoff, vacation accrual rates and 

longevity rates will be the same as before the layoff. 

 

ARTICLE 10 

INSURANCE 

Section 1.  Purpose.  

The City, according to the terms of this agreement, makes Health Insurance 

available to all employees in compliance with the "Patient Protection & Affordable 

Care Act".  Under the terms of this agreement the Local covenants and agrees to 

provide group health and life insurance benefits to all eligible members of the 

Pryor Creek Fire Department. For purposes of Article 10 only, “all eligible 

members of the Pryor Creek Fire Department” is interpreted to include all 

bargaining members of the Fire Department including probationary employees. 

This may include the Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chief at discretion of Mayor 

and Council. It is further understood that any member of the Fire Department who 

does not enroll in the Local’s insurance plan upon becoming eligible, or any 

member who drops the Local’s insurance and wishes to re-enroll at a later date, 

shall be subject to the requirements of the Third Party Administrator of the Union’s 

insurance plan, and the requirements of the Professional Fire Fighters of 

Oklahoma. 

 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 10 
 

Section 2. Employer Contributions to Insurance Fund.  

The City agrees to contribute to the Local Insurance Fund for each employee of the 

Fire Department enrolled in the Union’s group health, dental and life insurance 

plan on a monthly basis the amounts as herein specified: 

 

 a. For Employee Coverage:  100% of the employee's actual cost of coverage 

for health, dental, vision and life insurance up to a maximum of $635.00.. 

 b. For Employee and  Family Coverage:   A total amount not to exceed One 

Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and No/100 ($1,500.00) for the cost of 

coverage of the employee for health, dental and life, together with dependent 

cost of coverage for health insurance only.   

  (1) 100% of the Employee portion of the premium for coverage of the 

employee for health, dental, vision and life insurance, and 

  (2)  100% of the Dependent(s) portion of the premium for coverage of the 

dependent(s) for health, dental, vision and life insurance.  

 

The maximum contribution of the City to the payment of premium for "Employee 

and Family" insurance coverage shall be One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and 

No/100 ($1,500.00).  Currently the maximum monthly contribution to be made by 

the city towards the payment of health insurance premiums for other city 

employees is $1,500.  In the event that the city increases maximum monthly 

contribution to be made by the city towards the payment of health insurance 

premiums for other city employees, then the maximum contribution of the City to 

the payment of premiums for coverage under this provision shall be increased in 

the same amount as the increase allowed for other City employees. 

 

The foregoing contribution amount to be made by the City under paragraph "b" of 

this section "2" is the maximum amount to be contributed by the City.  In the event 

the premiums incurred for "Employee and Family Coverage" are less than the 

maximum amount stated herein to be contributed by the City, then the actual 

premium incurred for the coverage shall be the amount to be contributed by the 

City.  In the event the premium incurred is greater than the maximum amount 

stated herein to be contributed by the City, then any excess in actual premium shall 

be at the sole cost and expense of the employee. 

 

The City agrees to deduct and pay over to the Union on a monthly basis any 

additional sums from the employee’s net payroll upon his or her written request 

which must be countersigned by the Union's President or the President's designated 

representative, for additional sums which may be due to the Union’s Third Party 

Administrator for other costs associated with the employee’s enrollment in Union's 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 11 
 

group Health Insurance Plan.  

 

For the months of July and August of 2014 only, the City shall contribute a 

maximum of $1,588.75 toward payment of "Employee and Family Coverage" or 

the actual cost whichever is less. 

 

Section 3. Liability for Benefits.  

It is distinctly understood and agreed that the City’s only obligation is to pay the 

cost of the group insurance as described in Section 2. All matters with respect to 

coverage, payments or benefits and the amount thereof, shall be reserved to the 

Local and the insurance provider as to control and policies. 

 

Section 5. Selection of Insurance Provider.  

The selection of the insurance provider shall rest solely with the Union. 

 

Section 6. Indemnification.  

The Local further agrees to indemnify the City against all liabilities in connection 

with the administration of the group insurance program provided by the Local. 

Provided, that this section shall not impose any obligation on the Local to 

indemnify the City against willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of the 

City, its agents or its employees. 

 

Section 7. Employee Authorization/Provision of Documents.  

The Local shall: 

 a. Provide to the City a complete copy of the approved health, life and dental 

insurance plan(s) selected by it for the provision of insurance to its members 

within Twenty (20) days of its selection of the insurance plan(s). 

 b. Copies of all individual group enrollment cards within Thirty (30) days of 

their completion by the individuals enrolled in the group. 

 c. Such other documents and information as may be reasonably requested by 

the City shall be timely, reasonably and seasonably provided by the Local to 

the City upon request by the City for same. 
 

ARTICLE 11 

REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED ITEMS 

Section 1.  

The City agrees to compensate the employee for damage to or loss of personal 

items, including but not limited to clothing and uniforms, eyeglasses or contact 

lenses, dentures,  cell phones or watches (watches or cell phones limited to 

$85.00), that may become damaged or lost during the employee’s performance of 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 12 
 

assigned duties. 

 

Section 2.  

The amount reimbursed to the employee will be a reasonable amount agreed to by 

the employee and the Mayor. 

 

ARTICLE 12 

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the 

parties hereto during the term of this contract; and no provisions, terms or 

obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered or changed in any 

respect whatsoever by any change of any kind such as re-composition of elected 

bodies or elected or appointed officials, employees, agents, delegates or other 

assigns. 
 

ARTICLE 13 

PERSONNEL FILES CONFIDENTIALITY 

Section 1.  

Any records, information or documents concerning an investigation of a member 

shall be retained for future information and reference. Such documentation shall 

include, but not necessarily be limited to, letter of reprimand from supervisors for 

the said member, documentation concerning counseling sessions for violations of 

any rules or regulations or policies within the department of the City for said 

member, and any other information that could reasonably be construed as being 

detrimental to the member’s future with the Department. 

 

Section 2.  

The City, through its own auspices which include the Fire Chief, shall at all times 

respect the privacy concerns of the employees regarding personnel files. Matters 

within such files shall not be released except for good cause shown, and only on a 

need-to-know basis, as determined by the Mayor upon the advice of the City 

Attorney. If any copy of a personnel file is made, said copy shall be destroyed after 

the reason for the copy being made has been completed, unless said destruction is 

prohibited by Court order. 

 

Section 3.  

Employees shall be allowed to review their personnel file under appropriate 

supervision at any reasonable time, and may insert their own response into the 

personnel file, regarding any matter contained therein. 

 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 13 
 

Section 4.  

No original personnel file shall be removed from the Fire Department except by 

Court order, whereupon the employee shall be given notice of such removal. 

 

ARTICLE 14 

HOLIDAYS/VACATION/LEAVES 

Section 1.    

Employees shall be granted holiday time off work based upon the number of 

scheduled  holidays to be observed during the calendar year as established by the 

city each year. For the contract year twelve (12) holidays are scheduled for the 

city.  Each employee's scheduled time off work in observance of a holiday shall be 

scheduled subject to  the approval of the Fire Chief or Assistant Chief.  

 

Section 2.  

The Mayor may at his / her discretion due to safety reasons close any non-

emergency facilities without granting additional leave to emergency services 

personnel. 

 

Section 3.  

Holiday Leave Time must be used within (12) twelve month calendar year in 

which the holiday occurs or the same shall be lost. However, in the event schedule 

holiday leave time is required to be cancelled as a result of a disaster, declared 

emergency or due to staffing needs of the department which results in the member 

being unable to take the scheduled holiday time off work by the end of the calendar 

year the City shall pay the employee the equivalent pay for twelve (12) regular 

work hours for each unused holiday.   Payment therefore shall appear on the 

employee's regular paycheck and shall be paid no later than the 2nd pay period of 

the calendar year following the year in which they were earned.  

         

Section 4.   

City of Pryor Creek full time employees that are members of the IAFF Local 3567 

bargaining unit shall receive vacation leave in accordance with the number of years 

of continuous service as follows: 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE    ACCRUED VACATION PER YEAR 

One (1) through five (5) years    120 hours per / 5 shifts 

Six (6) through nineteen (19) years    168 hours per year / 7 shifts 

Twenty (20) or more years    216 hours per year / 9 shifts 

 

A. Beginning on your first anniversary date of full time employment 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 14 
 

vacation will be awarded at 120 hours.  Accrual will begin at 10 hrs 

per month on your first anniversary date of full time employment and 

you will be awarded 120 hours on each anniversary until you reach 

your fifth anniversary.  On your fifth anniversary date of full time 

employment your accrual will increase to 14 hours per month and 

when you reach your sixth anniversary you will be awarded 168 

hours. On your nineteenth anniversary date of full time employment 

your accrual will increase to 18 hours per month until you reach your 

twentieth anniversary date of full time employment you will be 

awarded 216 hours.  All vacation time must be used within the year it 

is awarded or the same shall be lost. 

 

B. Upon completion of one (1) year of continuous service with the City 

of Pryor Creek vacation may be taken. Vacations must be taken within 

the twelve (12) month period following the twelve (12) month period 

earned.   

 

C. Seniority of an employee shall be considered in approving all vacation 

leave request. 

 

D. Upon retirement, an employee shall be paid for accrued vacation 

leave, at his regular hourly rate of pay. 

 

E. Vacations will be scheduled and approved by the Fire Chief or 

Assistant Fire Chief, taken in such a manner so as not to impede the 

normal operations of the Fire Department.  The minimum earned 

vacation time an employee may use is twelve (12) hours. 

 

F. An employee who takes normal or early retirement will be allowed 

any vacation pay to which he is entitled for the fiscal year in which he 

retires by reason of service with the City for the previous fiscal year.  

In addition, an employee will accrue the vacation pay set forth in this 

Section for each full calendar month of service with the City from his 

/ her hire date to his retirement date.  Employees will be paid for this 

vacation on his / her last regular day of service. 

 

G. A permanent, full-time employee who elects to terminate his 

employment with the City will be paid an amount equal to the 

vacation pay accrued by reason of service with the city during the 

previous fiscal year and not yet taken. 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 15 
 

 

H. Vacation leave may not be carried over from year to year. 

 

Section 5.   

Sick leave for Fire Department employees shall accumulate at the rate of 10 hours 

per month, with a maximum accumulation limit of Seven Hundred and Twenty 

(720) hours.  Accrued sick leave can be used for an employee’s personal illness, 

for employee’s medical or dental appointments, or for the care of an immediate 

family member.  Employees must use all available paid leave (sick leave and 

vacation) before the employee would be eligible for a leave without pay for sick 

leave purposes.  If an employee prefers to take a leave without pay rather than use 

paid leave time, the Fire Chief will review such request on a case-by-case basis. 

 

Section 6.   

Full-time or part-time employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least 

thirty (30) hours per week are eligible for extended sick leave or family leave.  The 

City of Pryor Creek will comply with all provisions contained in the Family and 

Medical Leave Act of 1993.  Where this Labor Agreement provides greater 

benefits for employees, these provisions will supersede those contained in the 

Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. 

 

Section 7.   

Any employee that has accrued sick leave greater than the 720 hours will be 

compensated at the rate for base pay.  Employee will be paid hour for hour the pay 

period following the employee’s anniversary date for all hours accrued in excess of 

the maximum accumulation of 720 hours. 

 

Section 8.  

An employee may elect to use accrued comp time, vacation, and holiday time in 

lieu of sick time. Employee must have the approval of either the Chief or 

Assistant Chief. This section is intended for situations involving employee 

extended illness or off the job injury only. 

 

ARTICLE 15 

PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Pursuant to OKLA. STAT. Title. 11 § 51-111 the parties acknowledge and agree 

that the applicable rules, policies and procedures, regulations, fiscal procedures, 

working conditions, departmental practices and manner of conducting the 

operation and administration of the fire department and City of Pryor Creek 

currently in effect on the signed date of this agreement are incorporated into this 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 16 
 

agreement except as expressly modified or changed by the specific terms of this 

agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 1615 

HOURS AND TIME EXCHANGE 

Section 1.  

The work period for Fire Department employees shall be Twenty-Eight (28) days 

with the pay period ending date to coincide with the City of Pryor's pay period 

ending date. 

 

Section 2. 

The number of hours worked at regular pay scale is Two Hundred Twelve (212) 

hours during a work period. 

 

Section 3. 

All hours actually worked in excess of Two Hundred Twelve (212) during a work 

period shall be compensated in comp time at a rate equal to 1.5 times the number 

of hours worked.  

 

Section 4. 

Notwithstanding that the work period is a Twenty-Eight (28) day work period 

employees will be paid on a bi-weekly schedule.  Adjustments in the amount of 

pay to be received by the employee for the work period  shall occur and be 

reflected in the second paycheck received for the work period. 

 

Section 5. 

Paid time off work for vacation time, holidays, sick leave, union leave under 

Article 16 Section 3, and bereavement leave,  shall be counted as hours worked 

towards the Fair Labor Standards Act overtime hours threshold.   

 

Section 6. 

Due to shift scheduling during the year, any pay perod in which the employee is 

scheduled to work 10 shifts, the employee may be scheduled a Kelley Day in order 

to maintain a Two-Hundred Twelve (212) hour work period schedule at the 

discretion of the Chief. 

 

Section 7. 

Fire Department shift employees shall work a schedule of twenty-four (24) hours 

on duty and forty-eight (48) hours off duty. 

 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 17 
 

Section 28.  

Time of shift change will be 0800 hours. 

 

Section 39.  

The City agrees that employees have the right to exchange time, subject to 

approval of the Fire Chief or Assistant Fire Chief, when the change does not 

interfere with the operations of the Fire Department, provided that the employee 

wishing to exchange time has like skills, knowledge and ability. 

 

Section 410.  

Employee shall be allowed to carry on the books a maximum of 200 hours of comp 

time. Employees who accrue in excess of 200 hours of comp time which have 

accumulated at the rate of time and one-half must heshall be paid cash wages of 

time-and-a-halfat at straight time for comp time hours in excess of the 200 hours. 

Payment for all comp time hours over 200 shall be paid on the employee’s next 

regular paycheck. However, if an employee reaches the maximum 200 hours 

within forty-eight (48) hours of the end of a pay period, then the employee will be 

paid no later than the second paycheck from the time the maximum accumulation 

is reached. 

 

ARTICLE 1716 

BARGAINING UNIT RIGHTS AND SECURITY 

Section 1.  

The City agrees to prepare and deliver to the Local, one (1) copy of the current 

Labor Agreement for each member of the bargaining unit, one (1) copy to be 

placed in the Fire Station and one (1) copy to be provided to the Professional Fire 

Fighters of Oklahoma. The Local agrees to distribute said copies. 

 

Section 2.  

The City shall provide space in all fire stations for a Local bulletin board. Material 

posted on the bulletin board shall be limited to Union business, notice of meetings, 

seminars, workshops, legislative reports, safety bulletins, etc. No material of a 

subversive or derogatory nature or political endorsements shall be posted. 

 

Section 3.  

The Local is granted ninety-six (96) hours off per year with pay for the purpose of 

conducting Union business, with prior approval of the Fire Chief or Assistant Fire 

Chief. The specific Local member who shall be allowed to take said time off with 

pay shall be determined by the Local President. 

 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 18 
 

Section 4.  

Employees who are required by due process of law to render jury services or Court 

services shall receive their regular pay from the City during such period, minus pay 

received for jury service. 

 

Section 5.  

All employees qualified and entitled to vote in any election shall, when necessary, 

be allowed sufficient time off with pay to exercise this privilege. 

 

Section 6.  

Members of the Union Bargaining Committee shall be allowed time off without 

loss of pay to attend all scheduled bargaining meetings and investigate grievances. 

In the event of an alarm requiring employee response, the Bargaining Meeting 

shall be recessed or adjourned. All Bargaining Meetings shall take place within 

five (5) minute response time to the station for this Section to be effective. 

 

Section 7.  

The City agrees to deduct dues only bi-weekly in an amount certified to be correct 

by the Secretary-Treasurer of the Local from the pay of those employees who 

individually request in writing that such deductions be made. The City shall remit 

the total amount of deduction each month to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Local. 

This Authorization shall remain in full force and effect during the term of this 

Agreement. All deductions will be for the month in which they are taken. The 

Local shall indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless against any claims made, 

and against any suits instituted against the City on account of payroll deduction of 

Local dues. 

 

ARTICLE 1817 

INCENTIVE PAY 

Section 1.  

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified pump mechanics shall receive an incentive pay of Fifty 

Dollars ($50.00) per month. 

 

Section 2.  

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified ropes 1 shall receive an incentive pay of Fifty Dollars 

($50.00) per month. 

 

Section 3.   



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 19 
 

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified swift water rescue shall receive an incentive pay of Fifty 

Dollars ($50.00) per month. 

  

Section 4.  

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified as Hazmat Ops shall receive an incentive pay of Fifty 

Dollars ($50.00) per month. 

  

Section 5.  

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified as Fire Fighter 2 shall receive an incentive pay of Fifty 

Dollars ($50.00) per month. 

 

Section 6.   

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified as Confined Spaces shall receive an incentive pay of Fifty 

Dollars ($50.00) per month. 

 

Section 7.   

Those employees of the Local who have completed the requirements for and who 

are currently certified as an EMT shall receive an incentive pay of Seventy-Five 

Dollars ($75.00) per month. 

  

Section 8.  

No employee of the Local shall receive more than four (4) incentives pursuant to 

this article.  Incentive pay is effective upon contract date. 

 

Section 9  

All employees are responsible for ensuring that all requirements are current. A 

copy of current requirements is to be placed in employee personnel file. 

 

ARTICLE 1918 

WAGES AND LONGEVITY PAY 

Section 1.   

For the fiscal year July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, all members will be placed 

as according to revised pay plan attached hereto. (Exhibit A)  

 

Section 2.  Longevity Pay.   

Effective July 1, 2014 each employee covered by the terms of this agreement, 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 20 
 

beginning upon successful completion of five (5) years of continuous and 

uninterrupted employment as a unit member of the City of Pryor Creek Fire 

Department, shall receive monthly longevity compensation in the amount of  $2.50 

per month for each year of continuous service.  All bargaining unit members, 

beginning upon successful completion of ten (10) years of continuous and 

uninterrupted employment of the City of Pryor Creek Fire Department, shall 

receive compensation in the amount of $5.00 per month for each year of 

continuous service. Longevity rates are set forth on Appendix B, and to be paid bi-

weekly. Longevity pay is subject to Federal, State, and FICA taxes. 

 

Section 3. Extended Leave/Differential Pay:    

Two months following an employee's extended illness or on the job injury the 

Fire Chief or Assistant may recommend to the Mayor that an employee selected 

by them and assigned to fill the vacancy of position thereby created be promoted 

to the next step and range on a temporary basis not to exceed six months. Such 

temporary promotion for purposes of filling the position shall only be effective 

upon approval of the recommendation by the Mayor and Council. This section is 

intended for situations involving employee extended illness or on the job injury 

only.  
 

ARTICLE 2019 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 

Section 1.  

If any article or section of this Agreement should be found to be invalid, unlawful, 

or unenforceable by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation or 

by judicial authority, all other article parts or portions of this Agreement not so 

affected shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

Section 2.  

In the event of invalidation of any article or section, both the City and the Local 

agree to meet within thirty (30) days of such determination for the purpose of 

arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such article or section and other 

articles or sections that were directly affected. 

 

ARTICLE 2120 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1.  

By January 15th of each year, the City shall pay the annual membership dues for 

each member of the bargaining unit to the Oklahoma State Firefighters 

Association.  



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 21 
 

 

Section 2.  

The Fire Department shall, at least annually, conduct training and provide updates 

on Blood Borne Pathogens. 

 

Section 3.  

The City agrees to provide TB testing for all members of the bargaining unit. This 

shall be done on an annual basis and upon exposure of a member of the bargaining 

unit to a known or suspected carrier of the disease. 

 

Section 4.   

The City agrees to contribute up to $350.00 annually per member towards the 

purchase of boots or equipment.  Equipment to be purchased must be approved by 

the Fire Chief or Assistant Fire Chief prior to purchasing and subject to approval 

by Mayor. All approved purchases will be processed thru City Clerk’s Office. 

 

ARTICLE 2221 

DRUG POLICY 

 All employees will adhere to the modified City of Pryor Creek Drug Policy and 

Procedures and will be subject to random drug testing. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 2322 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL 

Section 1.   

All members shall be evaluated using the City of Pryor Creek’s performance 

evaluation form.  All members will be evaluated following his/ her anniversary 

date following (1) one, (4) four, and (7) years continual employment with City of 

Pryor Creek. Evaluations are to be conducted by the Fire Chief or Assistant Fire 

Chief and require the signature of the employee, Fire Chief and the Mayor. 

 

Section 2.   

Members who are on initial probation will not have a performance pay evaluation 

until the end of the probation period.  Upon successful completion of their 

probation period and evaluation, members may be moved to the next step of the 

pay plan.  At no time shall any member transferred from another department be 

placed ahead of any employee on the pay plan. 

 

Section 3.   



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 22 
 

If the member does not feel the performance appraisal was done properly or fairly, 

the member shall forward all evidence to support a different evaluation to the 

Mayor.  The Mayor, Fire Chief, member and his/her union representative shall 

meet within seven (7) days, excluding holidays and weekends, to discuss the 

evaluation. 

 

Section 4.   

New hired members shall be furnished the following items: See attached List 

Exhibit C. 

 

Section 5.  

City shall provide one (1) Class "A" uniform to each new employee within 30 days 

following the employee's one year anniversary date. If any member of the 

bargaining unit leaves for any reason or cause the employee shall return the Class 

"A" uniform purchased under this agreement.  All members of the bargaining unit 

will be required to repair, clean and maintain the uniform at all times. Repair or 

replacement of the Class A uniform for any reason except damage to the uniform 

while on duty shall be at the employee's cost.  The Fire Chief of Assistant shall 

determine if replacement is required if he / she deems necessary. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 2423 

EDUCATION INCENTIVE 

THE CITY agrees to award the following incentive payments to employees 

monthly for acquired college education in lieu of all previously agreed payments: 

 

(a) College Credit/No Degree - $3.00 per credit hour per year up to 60 hours 

of college credit to be paid one (1) time in January. 

(b) Associates Degree – 2% increase over base salary. 

(c) Bachelors Degree – 4% over base salary. 

(d) Masters Degree – 6% increase over salary. 

 

THE CITY will reimburse employees for college tuition for course work related to 

the employee’s job, at the following rate, up to six (6) hours maximum per 

semester and/or semester at an accredited college or university, and at a tuition rate 

commensurate with that of Northeastern Oklahoma State University.      

 



Fire CBA 2015-2016 Page 23 
 

      THIS AGREEMENT is executed, on the ____ day of _____________, 

2015, by the City of Pryor Creek and the Union, but shall become effective as of 

July 1, 2015. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this____ day of __________, 2015, by the 

Mayor and Council of the City of Pryor Creek, Oklahoma. 

  

 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK 

                                                                                         

 

 

 By:________________________  

                                                                            Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

 

__________________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

PRYOR CREEK FIRE FIGHTERS,  

LOCAL 3567 OF THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIRE 

FIGHTERS 

AFL-CIO/CLC 

 

By: 

______________________________________                           

President                                                                                     

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Secretary-Treasurer 



  Exhibit A 
  

 

FIRE 

2015 – 2016 PAY PLAN 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK 
                                       1                     2                    3                    4 
    Start                   1 year          4 year                7 year 
       (probation)  

N Fire Fighter $31,076.00 $35,771.00 $37,796.00 $41,986.00 
 

O Lieutenant $31,939.00 $36,769.00 $38,854.00 $43,136.00 
 

P Captain $32,831.00 $37,796.00 $39,785.00 $46,000.00 
 

 

 

 

 
Longevity – After 5 years of service, $2.50 per month for every year of service; after  ten years of service, $5.00 per 
month for every year of service. 

Annual raises are merit based and evaluation must be on file signed by employee, department head and mayor. 

 

CONTRACT APPROVED BY COUNCIL ____________ 














